TICE OF FINAL PASSAGE
FIL!"P? B 915 DQRD. NO. 384-70
DEBIGNATING THE FEUSIER OCTA-
GON HOUSE AS A LANDMARK,

| heraby cartity that ﬁuefwaglni_:
ordinanca was read for the d
time and finally passad by the Board
of Supervisors of the City and
_Caunt? ’sf s;nlggsncim at 15 meet-
‘e o °v;‘r-ioagalg?5. DOLAN, Glerk

roved: Nev,

App JOSEPH - ALIOTO, Mayor
Mov. 10, 1970=—1t

FILE NO, #8.70-15 ORD, NO, =
Dstteul‘l‘ma THE FEUSIER GCTA-
BN %ogabsod“b: li‘:m#:: & of the
Ij+§-¢] 1 il
City and County of San Francisco:
Section 1. The Bosrd Supervi-
sors hereby finds that the Feusier
Octagon House st 1067 Green Strest
has a speciai character and special
historical, architectural and aesthet-
ic intarest and velue, and that its
designation as a Landmark will be in
furtherance of and i(n conformance
¥ith_the purposes of Article 10 of
the City Pianning Code and the stan-
dards set forth thersin,
.{8) Designation, Pursuant to Sec-
tion 1004 of the City Planning Code,
Chapter 1[, Part I} of the San Fran-
CisCO Municipal Code, the Feusier
Octagon House iz hereby dasignated
2% a Landmark, this designation hay-
ing been duly approved by resolution
of the Cit: Pmnnln&(xmmlssion.
{b) Location and Roundsries. Pur-
suamt to Section 1004 of the City
Planning Code, Chepter (i, Part (1 of
the San Francisco Municipal Code, a

goint on the south iins_of Green
treet  distant thereon 71 feet &
inches eastar{g fram the east line of
Leavenworth Streel; running thence
eastarly 66 feet along the sald line
of Green Streel; thence at & right
angls soyutherly 137 t 6 inches;
thence at 2 right angle weaterlj( (73
foel: thence at a right angie norfher-

137 feet 6 inches to the point of
Leginning; being Lot 224 in Asses-
sor's Block 126.

e) Justiication. The special char-
ac end speclal historical, architec-
tural and assthetic Intarest and val-
ue of the aaid Lendmark lmstlfy ng
its designation ars as follows: Tha
oider of San Francisco’s two remain-
ing octegonal houses, the Fausler
ac %on Cuse was construcied cir-
ca  1857.58 according to guideiings
set forth In Orson Squire Fowler's “A
Home for All: or. the Gravel Wall and
the Octegon Mode of Bullding," Par-
ticularly noteworthy hers are the in-
terior which continuas to reflect its
sight-sitded shape as seen from the
street, and the third story with Man-
sard roof surmounted by an octa
nal cupots which were added in the
1880°3, as well as ihe Jarge, beaut-
fully 'iandscanad garden which sur-
rounds the structure.

Although the first known owner of
the house was George L. Kenny, an
agent for historian, pubiisher  and
booksefler M.H. Bancroft, the resi-
dence is named for ity second ownar
Louis Feusier, companion of such
notables as Leland Stanford and
Mark Twaln and waell-known San
Francisco businessman, whose fami-
Iy heid the residence from 187% to

() Festures, The sald Landmark
should be preserved generally in all
of its particular exterlor featires as
existing on the date hereof and zs
described and decicted in the photo-

raphs, case report and other mate-
riat on fiie in the Dapartment of City
Planning in Docket No. LM70.2: the
summaty description being as fol-
lows: Cctagonal in shape and hevin
{hree stories, the house was bylit o
@ _Itixtore of cemant or burnt lime,
aravel and clay, accoming to the
mathod prescribed ba 0. 5, Fowinr.
Unlike the Colonial Dames Octagon,
there s po exterior wood covering.
The hguse iz surmounted by an oc.
tagonal cupots, windowed on each
side. The third astory has a Mansarg
roof coverad by fish scale shingles,
with dormer windows mlternately sin-
gle and double, The corhers are
Quoined, and there are brick chim.
neys at three corners. Thara is a flat
?fOJBC“ﬁZ wornice &t the roof line;
he original cornice, At second-st
ceiling lewel, is sloping and supp f-
ad bi exposed rafters. The house is
not hesvily ornarmented; smail con-
soles support the upper cornice, and
there is an ormamental iron cresting
above that cornice st the roof line,
Thera are balusterad balconies at
the second - story floar levai,

poreh projecting out from the basic
octagonal form.

i hareby certity that the forogoins
ordinance was ‘passed for sa¢on
reading the Board of Supervisars
of the City and County of San Fran-
%lgs:ﬁ}o et its meeting of Cctober 26,

‘PHILIP P. ENGLER, Acting Clerk
Oct. 31, 19701} ¢




CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NC. 433

WHEREAS, A proposal to designate the FEUSIER OCTAGON HOUSE as a
Landmark pursuant to the provisions of Article 10 of the City Planning
Code was initiated by the Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board on
June 3, 1970, and said Advisory Board, after due consideration, has
recommended approval of this propesal; and

WHEREAS, The City Plananing Commission, after due notice given, held
a public hearing on September 17, 1970 and October 1, 1970, to consider the
proposed designation and the report of said Advisory Board; and

WHEREAS, The Commission believes that the proposed Landmark has a
special character and special historical, architectural and aesthetic
interest and value; and that the proposed designation would be in furtherance
of and in conformance with the purposes and standards of the said Article 10;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, First, That the proposal to designate
the FEUSIER OCTAGON HOUSE as a Landmark pursuant to Article 10 of the
City Planning Code is hereby APPROVED, the location and boundaries of the
landmark site being as follows:

Beginning at a point on the south line of
Green Street distant thereon 71 feet 6
inches easterly from the east line of
Leavenworth Street; running thence easterly
66 feet along the said line of Green Street;
thence at a right angle southerly 137 feet
6 inches; thence at a right angle westerly
66 feet; thence at a right angle northerly
137 feet 6 inches to the point of begianiag;
being Lot 22A in Assessor's Block 126;

Second, That the special character and
special historical, architectural and sesthetic interest and value of the
said Landmark justifying its deslgnation are as follows:

The older of San Francisce's two remaining
octagonal houses, the Feusier Octagon House
was constructed circa 1857-58 according to
guidelines set forth in Orson Squire Fowler's
A Home for All; or, the Gravel Wall and the
Octagon Mode of Building.” Particularly
noteworthy here are the interior which continues
to reflect its eight-sided shape as seen from
the street, and the third story with Mansard
roof surmounted by an octagonal cupola which
were added in the 1880's, as well as the large,
beautifully landscaped garden which surrounds
the structure,.

Although the first known owner of the house
was George L. Kenny, an agent for historian,
publisher and bookseller H. H, Bancroft,

the residence is named for its second owner
Louis Feusier, companion of such notables as
Leland Stanford and Mark Twain and well-known
San Francisco businessman, whose family held
the residence from 1875 to 1954,




CITY PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO, 6633
PAGE TWO

Third, That the said Landmark should be
preserved generally in all of its particular features as existing on the
date hereof and as described and depicted in the photographs, case report
and other material on file in the Department of City Planning in Docket
No. IM70.2; the summary description being as follows:

Octagonal ir shape and having three stories,
the house was built of a mixture of cement or
burnt lime, gravel and clay, according to the
method prescribed by 0. 5. Fowler. Ualike the
Colonial Dames QOctagon, there is no exterior
wood covering. The house is surmounted by an
octagonal cupola, windowed on each side, The
third story has a Mansard roof covered by fish
scale shingles, with dormer windows alternately
single and double., The corners are gquoined,
and there are brick chimneys at three corners.
There is a flat projecting cornice at the roof
line; the original cornice, at second-story
ceiling level, is sloping and supported by
exposed rafters. The house is not heavily
ornamented; small consoles support the upper
cornlce, and there is an ornamental iron
cresting above that cornice at the roof line.
There are balustered balcenies at the second-
story floor level. The base of the house sits
below street level on the downsloping lot. The
entrance is by way of a stairway to a columned
porch at the second story on the east side of
the house, the porch projecting out from the
basic octagonal form.

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Commission hereby directs its

Secretary to transmit the proposal for designation, with a copy of this
Resoluticn, to the Board of Supervisors for appropriate action.

I hereby certify that the foregeing Resolution was ADOPTED by the City Planning
Commission at its regular meeting of October 1, 1970.

R. Bruce Anderson

Acting Secretary
AYES: Commissioners Finn, Fleishhacker, Mellon, Porter, Ritchie, Rueda
NQOES: None
ABSENT: Commigsioner Newman
PASSED: October 1, 1970




LANDMARKS PRESERVATION ADVIS(RY BOARD FEUSIER OCTAGON HOUSE

Final Case Report April 15, 1970 1067 Green Street

OWNERS: Donald F. Houghton and Byron R. Meyer

LOCATION: South side of Green Street, between Jones and Leavenworth
Streets; Assessor's Block 126, Lot 22a.

HISTCRY AND The Feusier Octagon is one of only two surviving houses in

NATURE: San Francisco built on the octagon plan, the other being

the Colonial Dames Octagon on Gough Street. The exact year

of its erection is uncertain, but the Feusier is one of

the oldest houses on Russian Hill; the most informed estimate
indicates that it was built in 1857 or 1858, with one source
alleging construction as early as 1852, This Octagon is
notable in having preserved the original exterior construction,
and it fortunately continues to reflect its eight-sided shape
on the iaterior.

Octagon houses became something of a national fad in the
mid-19th century as the result of a book by COrson Squire
Fowler entitled "A llome for All; or, the Gravel Wall and the
Octagon Mode of Building". in this work Fowler, a New York
phrenologist who identified one's well-being with the shape
and construction of his domicile, proposed a new and cheap
way to construct houses for the "new age', The octagon form
was prescribed by Fowler sc that every room could receive
sunlight at some time of the day; he asserted that it would
admit more sunlight into more rooms for longer periods than
any other building form.

The fad resulting from Fowler's book swept several sectiouns

of the country and has left us with a hundred or more

Octagons nation-wide, These are concentrated in the Hudson
River country of New York, in New England {especially New
Hampshire), in the Scuth and Southwest (Mississippi and
Texas), and in the Far West, including California. At one
time there were at least five (possibly six} Octagon Houses

in San Francisco, as well as others in the Fruitvale section
of Qakland and elsewhere in the Bay Area. O©f the San Francisco
QOctagons, all but one were on or pear Russian Hill, the

sole exception being Cyrus Palmer's home on Rincon Hill (onthe
east slde ¢f Serond Street vtear Folsem Street'; it has been
said (and the story appears likely) that all of these were
built by a single Eastern builder. The Feusier House and

the Colonial Dames Qctagon are apparently the only two
remaining in the entire Bay Area.

Although the precise construction date and the builder have
not been conclusively established, the first known occupant
of the house was George L. Kenny, whose grandson Robert 4.
Kenny was Attorney General of California from 1943 to 1947,
George Kenny was a salesman or agent for H, H. Bancroft,

the famous bookseller,publisher and historian, A newspaper
for January 20, 1859 states that Kenny owned the house then,
and he is listed in the 1860 city directory as living in the
building,shown as being at the southeast corner of Green and
Leavenworth Streets; he was so listed continuously until 1874,
In 1875 Louis Feusier first appears as the owner and occupant
of what was then 1027 Green Street, The house is commonly
associated with the name of Feusier, in whose family it was
to remain for some 80 years.
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According to the family history, Louis Feusier arrived in
California about 1852, spent the years 1857-1867 in Nevada,
and then returned to San Francisco, later marrying Louise
Guerne, daughter of the pioneer for whom Guerneville was
named. Feusier is said to have been a companion of such
San Francisco notables as Leland Stanford and Mark Twain.
He was for many years in the wholesale produce business as
commission merchant, together with a brother and nephew.

The Feusiers subsequently were engaged in mining, salmon
canning, winemaking, and importing oriental goods. His vife
Louise lived in the house until her death, as did their son
Clarence who died in 1951, and the wife of Clarence, who
survived her husband by two years. In 1954 the Feusier
Octagon was sold by the family to one of its present owners,

The house appears in early views of the city showing Russian
Hill, including views dated 1858, 1861, 1862 and 1863. It
was near the summit, not closely surrounded by other buildings,
and was indeed an ocutstanding landmark of the city's skyline,
The original two-story house was modified (not to its detri-
ment) late in the century when the Feusiers added a third
story with Mansard roof, surmounted by an octagonal cupola,
Like other buildings on Russian Hill, the Feusier House
escaped the 1906 Earthquake, but was menaced by the Fire;

the outbuildings were dynamited but fortunately the main
house was saved,

Today, with Russian Hill built up intensely and high-rise
apartments vying with older dwellings, the Feusier Octagon
no longer stands isolated and dominant as shown in the
pictures of a century ago; but it remains a link with the
early days of the city and a visible reminder of the time
when eight-sided houses were a fashion. The Feusier is
undoubtedly the most distinguished landmark on its block,
but it is by no means the only buillding of interest. The
1000 block of Green Street is, in fact, one of the most
charming in the city due to its profusion of fine residences
and its dignified and spacious profile. Adjacent to the
Feusier on the east is an elegant little villa (1055 Green
Street) built in 1865 and remodeled by Julia Morgan in 1916.
Farther to the east are a 19th century farmhouse-style brown
shingle home (1045 Green); a three-story, narrow Stick-style
building of the 1880's, whose exterior curving staircase is
quite unusual (1039-43 Green); and an elegant Italianate
house with slanted bay and arched doorway, built prior to
1891 (1033 Green). Across Green Street is the striking
firehouse (1088 Green) built in 1907, with its half-timbered
facade, steeply pitched roof, and ornate front dormer;

saved from destruction by Mrs. Ralph K. Davies who bought it
from the city in 1956, it continues to serve ag a gathering-
place and is frequently the scene of charity functions,

Octagonal in shape and having three stories, the house was
built of a mixture of cement or burnt lime, gravel and clay,
accerding tn the method prescribed by O. S. Fowler. Unlike
the Colenial Dames Octagon, there is ne exterior woed
covering. The heuse is surmounted by an octagonal cupwla,
windowed on each side. The third story has a Mansard roef
covered by fish scale shingles, with dormer windews alter-
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nately single and double., The corners are quoined, and
there are brick chimneys at three corners. There is a flat
projecting cornice at the roof line; the original cornice,
at second-story ceiling level, is sloping and supported by
exposed rafters. The house is not heavily ornamented; small
consoles support the upper cornice, and there is an ornamental
iron fence above that cornice at the roof line, There are
balustered balconies at the second-story floor level. The
base of the house sits below street level on the down-
sloping lot. The entrance is by way of a stairway to a
columned porch at the second story on the left side of the
house, the porch projecting out from the basic octagonal
form.

The Feusier QOctagon House is surrounded on its relatively
large site by a spacious garden., The house immediately

to the east is similarly advantaged and the properties
further to the east also have an open feeling, while across
Green Street the predominant character (unusual for San
Francisco) is one ¢f openness on the street side with
buildings set well back. The Feusier site is zoned R-5
(Highest Density Multiple Residential} as is mest of the
"1000 Block”; but the mid-block properties directly east

of the Feusier are zoned R-3 (Low-Medium Density Multiple
Residential). To the east and south, dwellings and flats
predominate, although the south side of the 900 block of
Green Street is given over to high-rise apartment develop~
ment. To the north (across Green St.) small apartment
houses and dwellings set the prevailing tone, but there are
high-rise apartments directly opposite the Feusier House
and at the corner of Jones Street. To the west are apart-
ments, flats and dwellings with a three-story multiple
dwelling adjoining the Feusier House and a high-rise apart-
ment building on the southwest corner of Green and Leaven-
worth Streets.




